
Scotland County Board of Commissioners regular meeting 
April 4, 2011, A.B. Gibson Education Center, 322 S. Main Street, Laurinburg, NC 
 

1 
 

MINUTES 
Scotland County Board of Commissioners 

April 4, 2011 Regular Meeting 
A.B. Gibson Education Center, 322 South Main Street, Laurinburg NC 

 
At 7 p.m. Chairman Bob Davis called the meeting to order.  Commissioners in attendance:  
Chairman Davis, Vice Chair Joyce McDow and Commissioners John Alford, John Cooley, Carol 
McCall, Guy McCook and Clarence McPhatter.  Staff in attendance:  County Manager Kevin 
Patterson, County Attorney Ed Johnston and Clerk to the Board Ann W. Kurtzman.  Chairman 
Davis asked everyone to stand for a word of prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.   
 
Chairman Davis announced that FCC plans an expansion, and jobs would be created.  He said 
the company would make a $10 million investment, and that is good news for the County. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner McCall and duly seconded by Commissioner Alford to 
approve the April 4, 2011 agenda.  Vote:  Motion unanimously approved. 
 
Public Forum 
 

Chairman Davis said the Board of Commissioners would like to recognize and thank a 
group of dedicated citizens who volunteer their time in service to their community. 
Chairman Davis presented the Outstanding Volunteers of Scotland County with a 
certificate from the State and a lapel pin.   
 
Volunteers honored were The Campbell Soup Company, Mr. Aubrey Lawrence “Joe” 
Jones, Mr. Norman W. Quick, Ms. Virginia Ray and Ms. Patricia Williams.  Chairman 
Davis said Mr. Quick is one of 20 individuals statewide who will receive the Medallion 
Award in Raleigh. 
 
After the presentation, Chairman Davis asked if anyone else wished to speak at Public 
Forum.  No one came forward, and Public Forum was closed. 
 

Item 1. State Mental Health System and Local Management Entity update 
  
Area Director and CEO Jeanette Jordan-Huffam distributed the October to December 2010 
report.  She reviewed the report with the Commissioners.  Ms. Jordan-Huffam discussed the 
agency’s accreditation, upcoming events, the Local Management Entity employment numbers, 
care services for consumers and number of consumers served in Scotland County.  Ms. Jordan-
Huffam then answered questions from Commissioners. 
 
Item 2. Richmond Community College programs and activities report  
 
Richmond Community College President Dale McInnis provided an activities update and future 
projections.  Dr. McInnis said student enrollment is at a record high.  He credited the jump in 
enrollment to the economy, the cost of higher education at colleges and universities and the 
opening last year of the Honeycutt Center.   



Scotland County Board of Commissioners regular meeting 
April 4, 2011, A.B. Gibson Education Center, 322 S. Main Street, Laurinburg, NC 
 

2 
 

 
Along with academics, Dr. McInnis said there is a demand by the community to use the 
Honeycutt Center for meetings and other activities.   
 
Dr. McInnis said RCC will expand its non-credit and certification programs.  He discussed 
academic program partnerships that lead to degrees, and programs that are driven by job demand.  
 
Dr. McInnis said there is a possibility the RCC and High School early college program will 
relocate to the St. Andrews Presbyterian College.  He credited County Manager Kevin Patterson 
for conceptualizing the partnership with St. Andrews and assistance in developing a proposal.   
 
Dr. McInnis said it is not known how State budget woes will impact RCC.   He said RCC will do 
everything possible to sustain its programs and grow them to meet the needs of Scotland County. 
 
Item 3. Four County Community Services CSBG funding update 
 
Community Services Block Grant Director Gail McRae said Four County Community Services, 
with its main office in Scotland County, now serves eight counties. 
 
Ms. McRae discussed the CSBG program and how it fosters family empowerment and helps 
families achieve self-sufficiency.  She said Four County Community Services also oversees 
Head Start, accepts Section 8 applications and performs weatherization projects.  She said 437 
Scotland County residents were served by the agency in the past year.   From July 2010 through 
December 2010, the agency worked with 174 Scotland County families.  
 
She said the agency’s case managers are trained to help low income individuals become 
independent.  The agency teaches families how to manage money and make choices to save 
money, Ms. McRae said. 
 
Item 4. Government Complex roofing contract 
 
County Engineer Jim Blackwell said bids for the Government Complex reroofing project were 
opened March 31 at 1405 West Boulevard.  Mr. Blackwell said there were eight qualified bids 
out of 12 prospective bidders.  Funding for the project would come from the Public Buildings 
and unused capital monies. 
 
Mr. Blackwell recommended awarding the project to the lowest bidder, Sunbelt Roofing 
Services, Inc., of Marion, SC., for $169,500.  Mr. Blackwell said work would start immediately 
after the contract was awarded.  He expects project completion by the end of the fiscal year.  Mr. 
Blackwell said local contractors were made aware of the project but chose not to bid on it. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner McCook and duly seconded by Commissioner Alford 
to award the Government Complex roofing project to Sunbelt Roofing Service for 
$169,500.  Vote:  Motion unanimously approved. 
 
Item 5. Consent Agenda:        



Scotland County Board of Commissioners regular meeting 
April 4, 2011, A.B. Gibson Education Center, 322 S. Main Street, Laurinburg, NC 
 

3 
 

a) Approval of minutes of the Board of Commissioners March 7, 2011 regular 
meeting. 

b) Approval of fidelity bonds for various County officials and employees as per 
G.S. 58-72-10. 

c) Approve National Public Safety Telecommunicators Week Proclamation. 
d) Budget Amendments: 

1) Health:    Approve receipt of funds in the amount of $7,381.32, and 
authorize the Finance Officer to make the necessary arrangements to 
receive and expend the money.  No County dollars involved.  

2) Parks and Recreation:  Approve increase in expenditures in the amount 
of $4,442 and revenues in the amount of $4,900. 

3) Library:  Approve receipt of funds in the amount of $2,549.12, and 
authorize the Finance Officer to make the necessary arrangements to 
receive and expend the money.  No County dollars involved.  

4) DSS:  Approve receipt of funds in the amount of $1,852, and authorize 
the Finance Officer to make the necessary arrangements to receive and 
expend the money.  No County dollars involved.  

5) DSS:  Approve receipt of funds in the amount of $26,400, and authorize 
the Finance Officer to make the necessary arrangements to receive and 
expend the money.  No County dollars involved.  

6) DSS:  Approve decrease in funding in the amount of $787. 
7) General Services: Approve receipt of a Rural Center Grant in the 

amount of $78,000 for the WestPoint Stevens water plant study, and 
authorize the Finance Officer to make the necessary arrangements to 
receive and expend the money.  No County dollars involved.  

8) Revaluation:  Approve Revaluation increase in the amount of $25,000 for 
Revaluation contracted services.  

 
Motion was made by Vice Chair McDow and duly seconded by Commissioner Alford to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  Motion unanimously approved. 
 
Item 6. Recommended 2011 appointments to the Board of Equalization and Review 
 
Tax Administrator Mary Helen Norton asked the Board to appoint Mr. Charles “Scoofer” Jordan, 
Mr. Walter Rogers, Mr. Ken Haney, Mr. Sam Cribb, Mr. Aubrey L. Jones and Mr. Bob Davis as 
the Commissioner-representative to the Board of Equalization and Review for 2011.  Ms. Norton 
asked that Mr. Jordan continue as Chairman.  She explained the recommended individuals 
previously served on the Board of Equalization and Review and possess the necessary 
experience to serve. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Alford and duly seconded by Commissioner McCall to 
appoint Mr. Charles “Scoofer” Jordan, Mr. Walter Rogers, Mr. Ken Haney, Mr. Sam 
Cribb, Mr. Aubrey L. Jones and Mr. Bob Davis to the 2011 Board of Equalization and 
Review with Mr. Jordan serving as Chairman and Mr. Davis serving as the Commissioner-
representative.  Vote:  Motion unanimously approved. 
 



Scotland County Board of Commissioners regular meeting 
April 4, 2011, A.B. Gibson Education Center, 322 S. Main Street, Laurinburg, NC 
 

4 
 

Mr. Patterson said six percent of total appraisals were appealed when the average usually is 10 
percent.  Chairman Davis said the Board commends Ms. Norton and her staff for the excellent 
job they do.  Chairman Davis said he received feedback from people who said they were treated 
with respect and dignity during their appeals process. 
 
Item 7. Fair Housing Plan Extension request 
 
Economic Developer Greg Icard asked the Commissioners to approve a 12-month extension to 
the Fair Housing Plan, which expired in March 2011.  An approved Plan is required in order for 
the County to proceed with the grant process for the sewer extension for the biomass project.   
 
Motion was made by Vice Chair McDow and duly seconded by Commissioner Alford to 
approve the extension to the Fair Housing Plan.  Vote:  Motion unanimously approved. 
 
Item 8. Appointments to Board and Committees 
 
Motion was made by Vice Chair McDow and duly seconded by Commissioner Cooley to 
appoint Ms. Pat Fields and Ms. Ila D. Massey to three-year terms on the Scotland-Hoke 
Criminal Justice Partnership Board.  Vote:  Motion unanimously approved. 
 
Motion was made by Vice Chair McDow and duly seconded by Commissioner McCall to 
appoint Dr. Clark Hanmer to an unexpired term on the Mental Health Board.  Vote:  
Motion unanimously approved. 
 
Item 9. Report from the County Manager 
 
Before the County Manager discussed the monthly report, Chairman Bob Davis said he would 
like to add the Water Districts financial analysis to the agenda so the funding for the Districts 
could be clarified. 
 
Mr. Patterson presented a Water Districts Financial Analysis for 2001 to 2010.  Starting first 
with Water District II, Mr. Patterson said grants for the project are showing up as revenues.  
Those funds were used to finance the capital construction, and that’s where there is a difference 
in net assets and Fund Balance, said the County Manager. 
 
Mr. Patterson reviewed expenses, which include water purchases, operating expenditures, which 
are paid to the City of Laurinburg, interest and depreciation.  Mr. Patterson said when the grants 
are pulled out, Water District II has been losing money and has been borrowing money from 
receivables from Water District I.  Over the courses of 10 years, Water District II had $3.3 
million in sales and $3.7 million in expenditures and $1.4 million in grants.  Mr. Patterson said 
the $976,000 net income was mostly grant revenue that was reinvested back into the ground. 
 
Mr. Patterson said Water District I sales have been significantly better mainly due to use by the 
prison.  He reviewed the cost of operations and purchases.  Mr. Patterson said unless significant 
capital assets are added, the depreciation would be consistent in Water District I.  He said the 
system is still very young, and capital improvements will have to be made.   



Scotland County Board of Commissioners regular meeting 
April 4, 2011, A.B. Gibson Education Center, 322 S. Main Street, Laurinburg, NC 
 

5 
 

Mr. Patterson noted Water District I still had a loss.  He described it as a marginal system.  Mr. 
Patterson said despite the positive cash flow, there is not enough to maintain it as a business. 
 
Mr. Patterson said the Water Districts Financial Analysis would be made available to anyone 
who wishes to obtain a copy. 
 
Commissioner McCall suggested the Board of Commissioners might meet quarterly or three 
times a year to receive status reports on the Water Districts.  Chairman Davis said the possibility 
of Water District meetings could be discussed at a budget work session. 
 
Mr. Patterson said minutes from the Facilities and Policy committees are in the agenda.  Future 
minutes would be emailed or put in the Commissioner folders.  Drafts of the Rules of Procedure 
and the community grants policy are attached for review so they could be discussed at a future 
work session.   
 
County Manager Patterson asked if the Facilities Committee also would consider capital 
expenses of more than $100,000.  Mr. Patterson said he expects some needed capital 
expenditures that would impact budget.  Commissioner McCook said the Facilities Committee 
should review capital expenditures of $100,000 or more.   
 
The Board of Commissioners, by consensus, agreed that the Facilities Committee should also 
serve as a capital committee. 
 
Mr. Patterson said a list of boards and committees where Commissioners serve is attached for 
review. 
 
Mr. Patterson said WK Dickson and Marziano-McGougan developed a report on transporting 
water to potential partners as part of the WestPoint Stevens study.  There were no dollar figures 
attached with the report.  Mr. Patterson said Maxton and Red Springs expressed a need for 
sewer, but neither would be a large user of the WPS water plant.  Mr. Patterson said there was no 
clear and present need expressed by other potential partners, and he questioned what potential 
partners might invest just to maintain the asset.  Mr. Patterson said the economic feasibility of 
the project is expected to be much clearer by the end of the month.  
 
Mr. Patterson said the RFP for engineering/architectural services for the EOC was issued.  Bid 
opening date is April 15.  A recommendation will be brought to the Board for approval. 
 
The County Manager said the calculation for Scotland County Local Funding shows a decrease 
of $552,495 to $10,131,464. 
 
Mr. Patterson said the County, St Andrews, the School System and RCC discussed the location 
of the Scotland Early College High School at St Andrews since the Schools learned that 
$225,000 in transportation funding to bus the students from the high school to RCC would be 
eliminated.   
 



Scotland County Board of Commissioners regular meeting 
April 4, 2011, A.B. Gibson Education Center, 322 S. Main Street, Laurinburg, NC 
 

6 
 

Mr. Patterson said a proposed five-year agreement involving the County, Schools, St. Andrews 
and RCC is attached.  The County would provide $75,000 annually.  The School System and 
RCC would provide $50,000 annually.  RCC would provide $50,000 of equipment in year one 
and $25,000 of equipment in years two through five.  Mr. Patterson said the agreement would 
need approval by the Commissioners, School Board and RCC Board.   
 
Mr. Patterson said the 2012 academic year will be the final year the grant will fund early college 
program staff, which is $307,000.  If the School System does not receive additional funding, it 
would have to fund $357,000 of operations in years two through five.  Mr. Patterson said the 
subject will be discussed further at the budget work session. 
 
The County Manager said the DSS action plan was approved by the State.  The next update will 
be sent to the State by October 1, 2011.  A long-term plan is expected to be developed by the end 
of the calendar year. 
 
Mr. Patterson asked if there was interest in participating in the Beaver Management Assistance 
Program.  The County has not participated in the program in recent years.  Unless directed 
otherwise, Mr. Patterson said he would communicate Scotland County’s intent not to participate. 
 
Mr. Patterson discussed a schedule of fund balance for the last five years, which shows the 
breakdown between restricted and unrestricted funds.  The 2010 restricted was inflated by inter-
fund receivables.  Many receivables will be redeemed and capital projects closed this year.  Mr. 
Patterson said this would depress the unrestricted fund balance at June 30, 2010.  Mr. Patterson 
said the unrestricted fund balance currently is at nine percent.   
 
Spring Litter Sweep will be Saturday, April 30, 9 a.m. to 3 p.m.  Sunday in the Park will be 
Sunday, April 17, 2 p.m. to 5 p.m. at the Morgan Recreation Complex. 
 
The Board agreed to schedule a budget work session for 9 a.m. Wednesday, April 20, 507 West 
Covington Street.  The Board also agreed to postpone a retreat until after the budget process.  
 
(Commissioner McPhatter left at 9 p.m.) 
 
Resolutions were received from Harnett and Carteret counties opposing the loss county school 
construction dollars and the shift of additional school funding responsibilities to counties.  A 
Rutherford County resolution supports the repeal of NCGS 87-97, which requires local health 
departments to implement a private wells permitting process. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Alford and duly seconded by Commissioner Cooley to 
approve a Resolution Opposing the Loss of County School Construction Funds and the 
Shift of State School Funding Responsibilities to Counties and a Resolution in Support of 
the Repeal of NCGS 87-97.   
 
Discussion: County Manager Patterson said the Health Department already conducts well 
inspections.  The Commissioners suggested Health Director Ron Sapp give a report on local well 
inspections before approval of a resolution supporting a repeal of the program.   



Scotland County Board of Commissioners regular meeting 
April 4, 2011, A.B. Gibson Education Center, 322 S. Main Street, Laurinburg, NC 
 

7 
 

Commissioner Alford withdrew the motion pending a report from the Health Director on 
well inspections. 
 
Item 10. Closed Session 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Alford and duly seconded by Vice Chair McDow to go 
into Closed Session in accordance with N.C. General Statute §143-318.11(a)(4) to discuss 
matters relating to the location or expansion of business in the area served by this body.  
Vote:  Motion unanimously approved. 
 
OPEN SESSION RESUMED 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Alford and duly seconded by Commissioner Cooley to 
recess to 9 a.m. April 20 at 507 West Covington Street.  Vote:  Motion unanimously 
approved.   
 
 
Ann W. Kurtzman         Bob Davis 
Clerk to the Board         Chairman 
 
 


